CONTRACT

BY AND BETWEEN

EAST PROVIDENCE PROFESSIONAL, MANAGERIAL, AND TECHNICAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION

AND

CITY OF EAST PROVIDENCE RHODE ISLAND

EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 1, 2012 EXPIRES OCTOBER 31, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	2
1.01 Recognition	2
1.02 Probationary Employees	2
1.03 Association Dues	2
1 04 Non-member Association Dues	., 3
1.05 Indemnification of Payroll Deductions	3
1.06 Notification/Consultation	3
	A
ARTICLE II	11 4 A
2.01 Management Rights	., 4
ARTICLE III	4
3.01 Non-discrimination	4
ARTICLE IV	., 5
4.01 Personnel Ordinance	>
4.02 Past Practices	5
4.03 Seniority	5
ARTICLE V	7
5.01 Pay Rates	7
5.02 Merit Pay Plan	7
•	
ARTICLE VI	7
6.01 Longevity	/
6.02 Schedule of Longevity Pay	8
6.03 Longevity for Pension Purposes	8
ARTICLE VII	Ω
7.01 Vacation Eligibility	X
7.01 Vacation Engionity	 9
7.02 Vacation Carryover	o
7.03 Merit Leave)
ARTICLE VIII	9
8.01 Holidays	9
A DOTTON TO THE	10
ARTICLE IX	10
9.01 Personal Days	,,1(
ARTICLE X	11
10.01 Sick Leave	I J
10.02 Major Illness Sick Leave Plan	12

ARTICLE XI	13
11.01 Leave of Absence-Vacation Time	
11.02 <u>Leave of Absence-Sick Leave</u>	13
11.03 Leave of Absence-Military Leave	
11100 110001100 110001100 110001100	
ARTICLE XII	14
12.01 Health Care Coverage-Blue Cross	14
12.02 Health Care Coverage - Dental	
12.03 Duplicate Coverage	
12.04 Health Care CoverageOn-the-job Injury	
ARTICLE XIII	16
13.01 Life Insurance	16
ARTICLE XIV	
14.01 Meal Allowance	17
14.02 Overtime Allowance	17
14.03 Clothing Allowance	18
ARTICLE XV	19
15.01 Maintaining Vital City Operations	19
	•
ARTICLE XVI	19
16.01 Injured on Duty Leave.	19
ARTICLE XVII	21
17.01 Liability Protection	21
ARTICLE XVIII	21
18.01 Bereavement Leave	21
ARTICLE XIX	22
19,01 Educational Expenses	22
ARTICLE XX	23
20.01 Jury Duty	23
	00
ARTICLE XXI	23
21.01 Professional Development	23
21.02 Promotional Opportunities	
4 73 CD 4 CT 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	24
ARTICLE XXII,	
22.01 Fitness Membership	
A THROUGH THE STATEMENT	24
ARTICLE XXIII	0.4
Z.3.U. Kesignation	49

ARTICLE XXIV	24
24.01 Pension Plan	24
ARTICLE XXV	24
25.01 <u>Deferred Compensation</u> .	24
ARTICLE XXVI	25
26.01 Discharge and Discipline	25
ARTICLE XXVII	25
ARTICLE XXVIII	27 27
ARTICLE XXIX	27
29.01 <u>Duration of This Agreement</u>	27
29.02 Scope of the Agreement	28
29.03 Severability.	28
Exhibit A	
Exhibit B	

AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of East Providence and the employees covered by the East Providence Professional, Managerial and Technical Employees Association.

WITNESSETH:

That in consideration of the mutual and reciprocal promises of the parties hereto, the parties covenant and agree as follows:

PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this Agreement to carry out the personnel policy of the City of East Providence in encouraging a harmonious and cooperative relationship between the City and its employees by providing for procedures which will facilitate free and frequent communications between the City and the members of the East Providence Professional, Managerial and Technical Employees Association.

By means of this Agreement, therefore, the signatories hereto bind the City of East Providence and the East Providence Professional, Managerial and Technical Employees Association to maintain and improve the present standards of service to the City of East Providence, and agree further that high morale and good personnel relations are essential to carry out this end.

The City employees as individual members of the East Providence Professional, Managerial, and Technical Employees Association are to regard themselves as City Servants, and as such, they are to be governed by the highest ideals of honor, loyalty and integrity in all their public, personal and official relationships in order that they may merit the respect and confidence of the General Public, the City Council and the City of East Providence.

ARTICLE I

1.01 Recognition

The City recognizes the East Providence Professional, Managerial, and Technical Employees Association as exclusive bargaining agent representing all employees specified in Exhibit A in respect to wages, working hours, and other conditions of employment.

1.02 Probationary Employees

Probationary employees shall not become members of the Association until they have completed their probationary period and become permanent City employees. The City will notify the Association when probationary members complete their probationary period.

1.03 Association Dues

The City of East Providence shall deduct Association dues in accordance with the following authorization and shall forward to the Treasurer of the Association on a biweekly basis such amounts as deducted.

A check off list shall accompany the deductions forwarded setting forth the name and amount of dues deducted.

PROFESSIONAL MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION

TO: CITY CONTROLLER
CITY OF EAST PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

DATE:	

I hereby authorize my employer to deduct from each biweekly payroll my Association dues until further notice.

Signature of Employee Department

1.04 Non-member Association Dues

After the effective date of this Agreement, all present and future employees who are eligible for membership in the Association but elect not to do so shall be required to pay to the Association an amount equal to the regular Association dues and any assessments to compensate the Association for the cost of negotiations with the City and other representative services performed by the Association. Such payments shall commence on the pay date for the first payroll period following the effective date of this Agreement.

The Association will provide employees who are eligible for membership in the Association but who elect not to join with an annual Treasurer's report showing in detail to whom and on what matters the dues and assessments were expended.

1.05 Indemnification of Payroll Deductions

The Association agrees to indemnify the City and hold it harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, or costs of the City which arise out of the payroll deductions of Association dues, assessments, and Agency Shop fees.

1.06 Notification/Consultation

The City will notify the Association of the title, pay grade and job duties of any newly created positions or reclassified positions which should be included in Exhibit A. In addition, any job reclassification of an existing position by the City Manager may occur only after consultation with the Association executive committee. No reclassification shall be effective until thirty (30) days from the date of said consultation.

ARTICLE II

2.01 Management Rights

The Association agrees that the City has responsibility for the policies and administration of all departments which it shall exercise under the provisions of law and in fulfilling its responsibilities under this Agreement. Any matter involving the management of governmental operations vested by law in the City and not covered by this Agreement is in the province of the City. The City hereby retains and reserves unto itself all rights, power, authority, duty and responsibility confirmed on and vested in it by the laws and Constitution of the State of Rhode Island and/or the United States of America and/or the Charter of the City of East Providence. The exercise of any such right, power, authority, duty, or responsibility by the City and the adoption of such rules, regulations and policies as it may deem necessary, and as they apply to employees represented by the Association, shall be limited only by specific and express terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III

3.01 Non-discrimination

It is the continuing policy of the City and the Association that the provisions of this Agreement shall be applied to all employees without regard to race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. The representatives of the Association and the City in all steps of the grievance procedure and in all dealings between the parties shall comply with this provision. In conformance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Association agrees to cooperate with the City in making reasonable accommodations to the known and documented physical or mental limitations of otherwise qualified applicants or employees with a disability unless the accommodation would cause an undue hardship on the operation of the City. Reasonable

accommodation is any change in the work environment, work schedule, work assignments or in the 5 way things are usually done that results in an equal employment opportunity for an individual with a disability.

ARTICLE IV

4.01 Personnel Ordinance

The City agrees that the members covered by this Agreement shall continue to receive all current benefits as provided in Chapter 11 of the Revised Ordinances of the City of East Providence, Rhode Island, 1987, entitled "Personnel, Pensions and Retirement", as amended; except as otherwise modified hereinafter.

4.02 Past Practices

The City agrees that all past practices and City policies as set forth by the Charter, Ordinances or by tradition shall continue to be in effect.

4.03 Seniority

A. Seniority shall be defined as length of service with the City. Each employee shall have seniority from the latest date of hire as a permanent classified employee within their classification except as modified by Article 4.03(E) and except as modified by applicable state and federal law regarding veterans' re-employment rights. When two or more employees have the same date of hire, they will be placed on the seniority list according to their final score on the certified list. In the event that the employees are not selected from the same certified list, seniority shall be determined by the Association who will then submit the seniority assigned to the City.

B (1). The probationary period of a new employee shall be six (6) months and may be subject to a six-month extension at the discretion of the City Manager. Upon completion of said probationary period, such an employee, if retained by the City, shall be placed in the appropriate seniority roster as provided in paragraph 4.03(A) above.

- (2) An employee appointed from a promotional list who does not successfully complete the probationary period shall be reinstated to a position in the class occupied by the employee within the Association immediately prior to the promotion. The probationary period for promoted employees shall be six (6) months.
- C. Seniority within the same classification will apply within each department with respect to vacation preference. Vacation shall be selected by March 1. After such date, vacation shall be taken in the chronological order in which such time is requested subject to department head approval.
- D (1). In the event of a reduction in work force, it is agreed that employees will be subject to layoff in the inverse order of their seniority within the department where the reduction in work force takes place. Seniority shall accrue during such layoff period. If the need for layoff is over, the employee shall be returned to work in the order of their seniority and this recall provision shall apply for a period of two years from the date of layoff.
- (2) Employees on layoff under Paragraph D(1) shall be notified by certified mail, return receipt requested when that employee is to be returned from layoff as provided for in Paragraph D(1) above. The employee shall return to work no later than fifteen calendar days from the date of the receipt of the recall letter. If the recall is to a job classification with a lower salary than that from which the employee was placed on layoff, the employee shall have the right to refuse said recall. If recalled to the position from which the layoff occurred, the employee shall return to work as provided above. Failure to do so will result in the loss of recall rights described in Paragraph D(1) above.
- E. Any employee officially assuming the duties and responsibilities of a higher classification than that which the employee holds for more than thirty days shall move through the classification steps in accordance with the established classification step schedule.

ARTICLE V

5.01 Pay Rates

Wages for employees covered by this agreement will be listed in the attached Appendix

A. They will change as follows:

Effective November 1, 2013 there will be a two (2%) percent increase in salaries for all members of the bargaining unit.

Effective November 1, 2014 there will be a general wage increase equal to the Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment effective for January 1, 2014, capped at two (2%) percent.

Effective November 1, 2015 there will be a general wage increase equal to the Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment effective for January 1, 2015, capped at two (2%) percent.

Effective November 1, 2016 there will be a general wage increase equal to the Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment effective for January 1, 2016, capped at two (2%) percent.

For purposes of clarity and so that the same index is followed, the Social Security Cost of Living Adjustment for the past thirty-eight (38) years is attached as Exhibit 1.

5.02 Merit Pay Plan

The City Manager may give members covered by this Agreement a merit pay increase of not less than two (2%) percent nor more than five (5%) percent of the member's base salary rate as of November 1. The increase will become part of the member's base salary. The City Manager will determine which members shall receive the merit pay increase in any year based on outstanding job performance during the previous year. Members still receiving step increases shall not be eligible for these merit increases.

5.03 Direct Deposit

All wage payments shall be paid to employees by direct deposit,

ARTICLE VI

6.01 Longevity

- (A) Members employed by the City as regular classified employees prior to November 1, 1979 shall receive longevity pay, frozen at their current rate/percentage for the life of this Agreement, in accordance with the following schedule, payable in one lump sum in the first pay period after the close of the applicable City fiscal year. Longevity will be paid in a separate check.
- (B) Members covered by this Agreement hired after November 1, 1979 shall receive longevity pay as stated in 6.02 with the added condition that their job performance is satisfactory. A member whose job performance is deemed unsatisfactory may have longevity pay denied, delayed or reduced for that given year. If a member disagrees that their job performance warrants denial, delay or reduction of their longevity pay, then that employee may appeal through the grievance procedure in Article XXVI, Section 26.01.

6.02 Schedule of Longevity Pay

Members covered by this Agreement shall receive longevity pay, frozen at their current rate/percentage for the life of this Agreement, in accordance with the following schedule effective after the close of each fiscal year:

SCHEDULE OF LONGEVITY PAY EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 1, 1995

6% of base pay earned after five (5) years' service

7% of base pay earned after ten (10) years' service

8% of base pay earned after fifteen (15) years' service

9% of base pay earned after twenty (20) years' service

6.03 Longevity for Pension Purposes

Longevity will be computed as part of a members base pay for pension purposes only beginning November 1, 1989 with the seven (7%) percent pension contribution being deducted

proportionately over the twenty-six (26) bi-weekly pay periods even though longevity pay itself will continue to be paid in one lump sum after the close of the applicable fiscal year.

ARTICLE VII

7.01 Vacation Eligibility

A member hired before July 1 in any calendar year will accrue ten (10) working days vacation which can be taken in the following calendar year.

A member hired on or after July 1 in any calendar year will accrue five (5) working days vacation which can be taken in the following calendar year.

Subsequently any employee completing a calendar year of service will earn vacation in accordance with the following schedule:

YEARS OF SERVICE	WEEKS OF VACATION
1 year	2 weeks
3 years	3 weeks
10 years	4 weeks
15 years	5 weeks

All vacation leave is earned in one calendar year and taken in the following calendar year.

7.02 Vacation Carryover

Employees may accrue up to forty-eight (48) hours of vacation per year, up to a maximum of two hundred hours (200) to be used in subsequent years with the prior approval of the City Manager provided the member's requests shall be in writing. Unused carried over vacation time will not be paid out on retirement or departure. Employees cannot transfer unused vacation time to his/her sick leave balance.

ARTICLE VIII

8.01 Holidays

New Year's Day	January 1	· .	
Martin Luther King Day	3rd Monday in January		
Washington's Birthday	3rd Monday in February		•

Memorial Day	Last Monday in May
Independence Day	July 4
Victory Day	2nd Monday in August
Labor Day	1st Monday in September
Columbus Day	2nd Monday in October
Election Day	1st Tuesday after 1st Monday in November
	in each even numbered year
Veterans Day	November 11
Thanksgiving Day	4th Thursday in November
Christmas Day	December 25

Including Good Friday afternoon, Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve afternoons; and a floating holiday of the member's choice with the approval of his/her department or division head.

When any authorized holiday occurs on Sunday, the following business day shall be considered the holiday. When any authorized holiday occurs on Saturday, an alternate holiday shall be determined at the discretion of the City Manager. When a holiday occurs on a Library employee's regular day off, that individual shall be allowed to take a floating holiday.

No employee will be entitled to holiday pay unless he/she works the day before and the date after the holiday, unless excused for justifiable reasons.

ARTICLE IX

9.01 Personal Days

Personal leave may be drawn only at a time convenient to and approved in advance by the City.

Written application for personal leave shall be made in advance stating the time of such requested leave. Personal days shall not be taken in a manner to extend a vacation or a holiday unless explicit permission to do so is obtained from the City Manager. Personal leave days must be taken in no less than one-half (1/2) day at a time.

All permanent classified members of the bargaining unit shall be granted three (3) personal leave days per City fiscal year. If a member resigns, retires, or is terminated in the first six months of a fiscal year, that member shall be entitled to only one (1) personal leave day in that fiscal year. If the member has already taken two (2) or three (3) personal leave days, the value of the second and third day will be deducted from the member's final paycheck. Personal days are not granted to and cannot be taken by members on probationary status. If a member completes the six-month probationary period before May I, that member would receive two (2) personal leave days for that fiscal year. If a member completes the six-month probationary period after May I, that member would receive one (1) personal leave day for that fiscal year. If a member is on probation on October 31, the last day of the fiscal year, then that member would receive no personal leave in that fiscal year.

The personal leave days cannot be accrued from year to year and must be used in the City fiscal year in which they were earned.

ARTICLE X

10.01 Sick Leave

- (A) Employees shall receive fifteen (15) sick days per year for use because of actual personal illness, non-compensable bodily injury or disease and exposure to contagious disease not connected with City employment. It may also be granted for a maximum of three (3) days in any one year for illness in the immediate family.
- (B) Upon retirement only, a member of the bargaining unit shall receive payment for fifty (50%) percent of their accrued sick leave, but such payment shall not exceed a total of Five Thousand (\$5,000.00) Dollars.

Retirement as it applies here will be understood as eligibility and application for a pension in the Municipal Employee's Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island.

- (C) Whenever a member dies while in the employ of the City, the City shall pay to the deceased member's beneficiary as designated under the Municipal Employee's Retirement System of the State or to the widow, husband, or heirs-at-law as hereinafter set forth a sum of money computed on the basis of their weekly earnings for accumulated vacation leave which had accrued to such deceased member at the time of their death. In the event that such deceased member has failed to designate a beneficiary for such payment, then such sum of money shall be paid first to the surviving widow or husband and, if there is no surviving widow or husband, then to the surviving children in equal shares; provided that if such deceased member has not designated a beneficiary and leaves no widow, husband or child, then such accrued benefits shall be paid to his/her next of kin.
- (D) When a member of the East Providence Professional, Managerial and Technical Employees Association (EPPMTEA) is laid off or involuntarily severed from employment, the City Manager will make an effort to find suitable alternate employment.

10.02 Major Illness Sick Leave Plan

This Major Illness Sick Leave Plan is established solely for members who have a major illness which requires the use of sick leave beyond the amount of accumulated sick leave and vacation leave held by said member.

Approval of a member for use of such major illness sick leave within the guidelines of this article will be determined by a committee of three (3) which will be appointed by the President of the Association.

It is to be understood that this Major Illness Sick Leave Plan will commence only after the member's individually accumulated sick leave and vacation leave have been exhausted.

Any permanent member may transfer within any twelve-month period up to three (3) days of the member's accumulated sick leave credits to a fellow member in the event the latter member is absent due to a major illness and has used up all of his/her accumulated sick leave and vacation leave credits.

The maximum time limit under which a member can be covered by others sick leave shall be twenty-five (25) work days.

ARTICLE XI

11.01 Leave of Absence-Vacation Time

Vacation time shall not accrue at the established rate per month when a member is out on leave without pay during that entire month.

11.02 Leave of Absence-Sick Leave

Sick leave shall not accrue at a rate of one and one quarter (1 1/4) days per month when a member is out on leave without pay during the entire month.

11.03 Leave of Absence-Military Leave

Any regular full-time employee who may be a member of the standby reserve or ready reserve of any branch of the armed forces and who may be required to perform military duties for a period of 15 days or less in any one fiscal year at any time while so employed by the City shall be paid the difference between his/her regular salary paid by the City and the compensation paid by either the state or federal government during the performance of his/her military service in any one fiscal year. However, if any employee is called to regular duty in the armed forces of the United States, he/she shall be given a leave of absence by the City in accordance with applicable state and federal law and the provisions of this section relative to the difference in earnings shall not apply.

ARTICLE XII

12.01 Health Care Coverage-Blue Cross

The City agrees to provide each regular employee covered by this Agreement with medical coverage on an individual or family basis as desired by the employee provided that the employee certifies that he or she cannot receive comparable insurance through the employee's spouse. Employees will be required to certify annually that the employee is not eligible to receive comparable insurance through the employee's spouse — defined as insurance with a premium copayment that is no more than ten percent (10%) greater than the employee premium copayment associated with the plan offered by the City.

The City will provide the medical benefits summarized in Appendix B.

Employee cost-sharing shall be based on the following schedule (income amounts will be based on the employee's prior year state W-2 gross wages; for employees employed by the City for less than one year, income amounts will be based on base wages):

Income	Contribution
Less than \$30,000	10%
\$30,000 to less than \$46,000	15%
\$46,000 to less than \$95,000	20%
\$95,000 and above	25%

Effective June 30, 2013, the City may provide medical benefits through a high-deductible plan. If the City elects to do so, it will pay the difference in between the deductible described in Appendix A and the high-deductible plan through a Health Reimbursement Account.

Effective November 1, 2012, health insurance will be paid by the City for all retiring members of the bargaining unit and their spouse for one year after retirement under the same terms as active employees. Retired members of the bargaining unit, other than those with twenty-five (25) years of service as of the date of this agreement, will be required to certify annually that

he or she is not eligible to receive comparable insurance — defined as insurance with a premium co-payment that is no more than ten percent (10%) greater than the premium copayment associated with the plan offered to the retired member by the City. In the event that the retired member is eligible for or obtains or is covered by comparable health insurance, the coverage provided by the City will be terminated. In the event of the death of a retired member of the bargaining unit who is receiving health insurance coverage for his or her spouse, said coverage shall continue up to a maximum of one year from the date of retirement. Employees with twenty-five (25) years of service as of the date of this agreement shall receive family coverage health insurance until they are eligible for Medicare. In the event of death of a member or retired member who is receiving health insurance coverage, said coverage shall continue up to the maximum of three (3) years from either the date of the retirement or death of the active member.

12.02 Health Care Coverage - Dental

The City shall provide and pay for dental coverage through Level IV, family coverage, including a Student to Age 25 rider. All single employees without dependents shall be entitled to individual coverage. During the term of this Agreement, the City may provide, after obtaining agreement from the Association alternate dental care coverage and service that is equivalent to that provided under this Agreement.

12.03 Duplicate Coverage

When a member of the bargaining unit and a spouse are both employees of the City of East Providence, then the City of East Providence need not buy both spouses medical or dental coverage, but the City shall provide the member and spouse with the plan having the best coverage for the spouses so employed. In the event the spouse employed with the coverage shall retire, resign, or be terminated for any reason, then the spouse without the coverage shall be immediately granted the

coverage of that employee's bargaining unit without any waiting period. In the event the spouse without the coverage shall receive a better plan than the other spouse during the course of any negotiations, the City shall immediately implement the better of the two plans in conformance with the spirit of this Section.

12.04 Health Care Coverage-On-the-job Injury

In the implementation of Article 16.01, it is understood and agreed that employees injured on the job shall use their Healthmate Coast to Coast coverage first to cover any medical bills; and any excess cost shall be paid by the City of East Providence.

ARTICLE XIII

13.01 Life Insurance

All active members shall be provided \$45,000.00 of group life insurance while active which shall reduce to \$7,500.00 (paid for by the City) for employees retiring on or after November 1, 1996 unless they elect to carry the amount in effect on the date they retire. In that event they shall reimburse the City at an individual rate determined by the insurance company based upon the retiree's age and sex.

Former employees who are retired with an amount of group life insurance in excess of \$20,000.00 shall be afforded the opportunity for a thirty (30) day period to elect the City paid \$7,500.00 group life policy, or choose to remain with their present coverage and reimburse the City at the "City group rate," Insurance for active employees terminates on the last day of the month in which a member terminates his/her employment. Members are responsible for contacting the Personnel Office in writing at least two weeks prior to separation from the City to select either option for insurance coverage after retirement. Retirement as it is applied here will be understood as

eligibility and application for a pension in the Municipal Employees Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island.

The City's obligation with regard to life insurance is limited solely to the payment of its cost of the insurance program, and members and their dependents and beneficiaries shall be entitled to benefits only in accordance with and governed by the terms and conditions of the insurance policy issued to provide such benefits. Neither the City nor the Association shall be obligated to pay any insurance benefits provided for in this section directly to the members or their dependents or beneficiaries.

ARTICLE XIV

14.01 Meal Allowance

The following positions will be entitled to receive a Six (\$6.00) Dollar meal allowance when supervising a member of a bargaining unit who is receiving a meal allowance:

Assistant Superintendent of Wastewater Treatment
Assistant Highway Superintendent
Water Meter Supervisor
Collection and Distribution System Supervisor
Labor Supervisors (Highway, Parks, Central Garage)
Electrical Maintenance Supervisor
Assistant Electrical Maintenance Supervisor

14.02 Overtime Allowance

The following members shall receive time and one-half pay or compensatory time when they work beyond their regular hours or when called back for actual time worked. Overtime or callback will be at double time on Sunday. Compensatory time will be allowed to accumulate to a maximum of three (3) days. Any callback or overtime earned in excess of three (3) days must be received in the form of pay.

Assistant Superintendent of Wastewater Treatment

Assistant Highway Superintendent
Water Meter Supervisor
Collection and Distribution System Supervisors
Labor Supervisors (Highway, Parks)
Electrical Maintenance Supervisor
Assistant Electrical Maintenance Supervisor
Superintendent of Highway
Superintendent of Wastewater
Superintendent of Central Garage
Superintendent of Water Utilities
Superintendent of Public Buildings

14.03 Clothing Allowance

Members that are eligible to receive uniforms will be allowed an optional clothing allowance of Seven (\$7.00) Dollars per week in lieu of City provided uniforms,

Lab Director/Senior Chemist Environmental Engineer/Pre-Treatment Coordinator Collection and Distribution System Supervisors Electrical Maintenance Supervisor Assistant Superintendent of Wastewater Treatment Superintendent of Wastewater Treatment Superintendent of Central Garage Labor Supervisor (Highway) Superintendent of Highway Superintendent of Public Buildings Superintendent of Water Superintendent of Parks Water Meter Supervisor Labor Supervisor (Central Garage) Labor Supervisor (Parks) Pretreatment Coordinator Assistant Electrical Maintenance Supervisor Assistant Highway Superintendent

ARTICLE XV

15.01 Maintaining Vital City Operations

(A) The Association members agree to perform work necessary to maintain vital operations

within the City in the event of a work stoppage, slowdown, or interruption by other employees of the City.

- (B) [Intentionally left blank.] (C) [Intentionally left blank.] (D) During a work stoppage, slowdown, or interruption, members who are required to work in excess of forty (40) hours in one week, or who are required to work on Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays shall be paid time and one half of their regular pay for all such hours worked.
- (E) Section (D) of this section shall not be interpreted in any way that allows for calculation of more than one (1) premium to be paid on the same or a portion of the same hours.

ARTICLE XVI

16.01 Injured on Duty Leave

Whereas, it is incumbent on the City and the Association to work together cooperatively to return injured employees to work as soon as possible.

(A) Any employee who in the performance of assigned duties is injured or contracts an occupational illness or contagious disease shall be placed on injured on duty leave. There shall be no disciplinary action taken by the City against any such employee by reason of such injury and/or illness or exposure except where the employee violates specific oral or written instructions. Such illness or injury must be reported to the employee's supervisor and the employee must present a doctor's certificate substantiating that injury or illness if they lose time from work because of it. The City retains the right to verify the reason for the absence by contacting the employee's physician or referring the employee to a physician appointed by the City. The Union shall have the right to a copy of such report. In the event that the employee's physician and the physician appointed by the City do not agree on the nature of or the extent of the job-related injury or illness and/or duration of said injury of illness and cannot agree as to whether or not the employee is physically fit to return to

their job or light duty, then an impartial physician shall be appointed from the list. The impartial list shall be established by the Association and the City at the beginning of the contract. There shall be a minimum of six (6) doctors on the list who shall be used on a rotating basis. Replacements shall be ordered as necessary. However, if a specific specialist is needed, said specialist shall be deemed next on the list. The impartial physician's findings and recommendations shall be binding on both parties. The fees and expenses of the impartial physician shall be borne by the City. No employee shall be returned to work, including light duty, unless the employee is released by his/her physician or the impartial physician to perform such work.

(B) With respect to paragraph (A) above, such lost time shall not be chargeable against accrued sick leave. Employees injured on duty shall use their health insurance for all medical costs, but said employees can submit receipts for their co-payments/deductibles for reimbursement. In any event, employees must make application for retirement within thirty (30) calendar days from when it is determined by their physician or the impartial physician that they can no longer perform the duties of their job.

ARTICLE XVII

17.01 Liability Protection

In the event that a member is sued civilly as a result of an incident or decision which arose in the course of his/her employment as a City Official, the City shall defend the member in said civil claim and pay any judgment resulting therefrom. However, in the event that a criminal investigation and/or complaint is involved, the City shall defend said member only after all criminal matters concerning said member have been finally adjudicated. The City shall not be obliged to defend a member in criminal proceedings involving said member. However, the City shall pay all reasonable

attorney fees incurred by a member if said member is finally adjudicated not guilty of charges resulting from an incident or decision which arose in the course of his/her employment.

ARTICLE XVIII

18.01 Bereavement Leave

In the event a death occurs in the immediate family of a member of the bargaining unit, the City of East Providence agrees to pay such member for time lost from work as needed not to exceed a period of three (3) days in the case of each such death, for the purpose of attending funeral services and making necessary arrangements therefor. The term "immediate family" shall be defined to include father, mother, spouse, children, brother and sister of the member, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, and grandchildren. In the event of death of an aunt or uncle, niece, or nephew, up to one (1) day of such leave with pay may be granted for the purpose of attending funeral services. Bereavement leave will be increased to four (4) days for spouse, mother, father, child, sister, and brother only.

ARTICLE XIX

19.01 Educational Expenses

Members of the bargaining unit shall be eligible for reimbursement of tuition costs and required books for all courses required to fulfill degree requirements in a job related field of study upon successful completion of such courses. These payments shall be subject to the following limitations:

- (A) All courses required to fulfill degree requirements in a job related field of study approved in advance by the division or department head and the Personnel Director;
 - (B) Each member shall be limited to two (2) courses per fiscal year,

- (C) Reimbursement shall be made upon presentation of grade reports indicating the member has achieved a passing grade;
- (D) Courses must be at accredited colleges, universities, and schools within the State of Rhode Island or outside the state with prior approval of the City Manager;
 - (E) Course schedule and study shall not interfere with work hours or responsibilities.

ARTICLE XX

20.01 Jury Duty

Regular full-time members shall be granted leaves of absence for required jury, grand jury, and similar civic duty requiring appearances before a court or other public body. Such members shall receive that portion of their regular salary which will together with their jury pay equal their total salary for the same period. However, it is agreed that travel mileage, reasonable parking and lunch costs while on jury duty shall not be considered part of jury pay; and therefore, will be deducted from the total jury pay upon presentation of receipts. No reimbursement will be eligible or made without receipts. Each day's reimbursement shall not exceed the daily jury rate of \$15.00 nor shall the total reimbursement exceed the total jury pay. If the amount of money and the receipts turned in by the member do not total the jury check, the difference will be deducted from the member's biweekly payroll check. Travel mileage will be paid at the rate of \$.21 per mile from place of residence to the courthouse. Appearance as a witness in personal, civil or criminal cases or matters which are not job related shall not be covered by this Article.

ARTICLE XXI

21.01 Professional Development

The City and the Association will jointly plan, coordinate, and sponsor at least two training or educational sessions a year to enhance the personal and/or professional development of the City's managerial, supervisory, technical, and professional members. The City will pay for registration, speaker fees, or conference fees associated with the sessions which will be held during working hours whenever possible. The sessions may be mandatory or voluntary depending on their nature and purpose. The City will set aside \$2,500.00 in the budget for professional development.

21.02 Promotional Opportunities

To the extent possible, vacancies occurring within this unit shall be made available to other members of the unit depending upon fitness and ability. If no member is considered qualified, the 24 position will be filled by either promotion from within the City or outside examination.

ARTICLE XXII [Intentionally Left Blank]

ARTICLE XXIII

23.01 Resignation

Members must give at least a two (2) week notice prior to retiring or resigning from City employment. It is desirable in all supervisory, professional, technical and managerial positions to give a month's notice.

ARTICLE XXIV

24.01 Pension Plan

The City of East Providence, a participating municipality as defined in the General Laws of Rhode Island, Section 45-21 entitled "Retirement of Municipal Employees" and members covered by the Association will participate under the provisions of Section 45-21-52 entitled "Automatic increase in service retirement allowance", Plan B effective January 1, 1986.

ARTICLE XXV

25.01 Deferred Compensation

Deferred compensation benefits are suspended for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVI

26.01 Discharge and Discipline

- (a) The City shall have the right to discharge and/or discipline employees at any time for just cause and in the case of discharge shall give the Association at the time of said discharge the reasons for discharge in writing by giving a copy to the Association President. In the event the Association shall claim that any such discharge has been made without just cause, such claim shall be presented in writing within five (5) working days from the date of such discharge and shall be disposed of under the grievance procedure set forth in Article XXVII hereof.
- (b) The City shall have the right to discharge and/or discipline any new employee who has not completed his/her probationary period. The discharge and/or discipline of a probationary employee shall not be covered by the provisions of Section 26.01 (a) above or by the grievance procedure set forth in Article XXVII hereof.

ARTICLE XXVII

27.01 Grievance Procedure

For the purpose of resolving alleged grievances of members of the Association arising out of the interpretation of this agreement, the grievance procedure shall be as follows:

(a) When a member has a grievance, the member may bring it to the attention of the Association.

- (b) A representative of the Association, within ten (10) days thereof, may arrange a meeting with the member, the aggrieved member's supervisor, the department head and the Director of Personnel. The City will answer the grievance within ten (10) days.
- (c) If agreement cannot be reached, the decision may be appealed to the City Manager who will schedule a meeting within ten (10) days. If his answer is not satisfactory, the matter may be referred to Step (d).
- (d) In all matters except those involving promotion, demotion, transfer, suspension or discharge if the matters are not settled within ten (10) working days of the Step (c) meeting, the grievance shall be taken up under Step (e). Matters concerned with demotion, transfer, suspension, and discharge not settled within ten (10) working days of the Step (c) meeting may be appealed by the aggrieved employee to the Personnel Hearing Board. It being specifically understood that all matters involving demotion, transfer, suspension, or discharge have to be heard and decided by the Personnel Hearing Board prior to proceeding to arbitration in accordance with Step (e).
- (e) A grievance not satisfactorily settled under Steps (b), (c), and (d) may be submitted to arbitration. The arbitrator shall be chosen by mutual agreement. However, if at the end of five (5) working days there is no mutual agreement, the matter shall be referred to the American Arbitration Association for selection of an arbitrator in accordance with its Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules. The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from or change the terms of this agreement. The arbitrator shall be confined solely to the interpretation and application of the terms of this agreement. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by both parties.

It is hereby specifically agreed by and between the Association and the City that any and all settlements of grievances shall be final and binding upon all parties herein concerned.

It is hereby specifically agreed that the decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties and all right of appeal by either party to any court, tribunal, etc. are hereby expressly waived.

ARTICLE XXVIII

28.01 Work Stoppage

In consideration of the supervisory and managerial responsibility of the members of the Association such supervisory, managerial and technical employees of the City of East Providence shall have no right to engage in any work stoppage, slowdown, or strike.

The Association members agree that they shall not engage in concerted use of sick leave or personal days.

In the event of unauthorized interruptions, the Association agrees that it shall join the City in requiring its members to return to work immediately. In the event of a violation of this article by the Association and/or the members, the City may, in addition to other remedies, discipline such members up to and including discharge, subject to review as defined under the Personnel Ordinance.

Members shall not be entitled to any benefits or wages whatsoever while they are engaged in a strike, work slowdown, interruption, or stoppage.

This article shall survive the term of this contract.

ARTICLE XXIX

29.01 Duration of This Agreement

This Agreement shall be for a term commencing the first day of November, 2012 and shall continue and remain in full force and effect until October 31, 2017 and from year to year thereafter unless either party at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration date in 2017 or in

any year thereafter gives to the other party written notice of its intention to terminate or amend this Agreement.

The City agrees to recognize, bargain and negotiate in good faith with the East Providence Professional, Technical and Managerial Employees Association concerning any extension, modification or renewal of this Agreement.

29.02 Scope of the Agreement

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter and that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

Therefore, for the life of this Agreement, the City and the Association within the provisions of law each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to negotiate collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to, or covered in this Agreement, or with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated and signed this Agreement.

29.03 Severability

In the event that any section of this Agreement is deemed in violation of any law by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall be deemed to be valid and effective.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above written.

		ı
į	EAST PROVIDENCE PROFESSIONAL,	
	MANAGERIAL, AND TECHNICAL	ĺ
CITY OF EAST PROVIDENCE	EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION	ĺ
	,	

John Burns 5/15/13

SCHEDULE OF BI-WEEKLY PAY RATES EAST PROVIDENCE PROFESSIONAL, MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 1, 2010

DESCRIPTION PAY GRADE STEP A	DE STEPA	TWO WEEKS STEP	ra	TWO WEEKS ST	STEP C TW	TWO WEEKS ST	STEP D	TWO WEEKS	STEPE	TWO WEEKS 'AY GRADI	Y GRADE
•	ı			12007	32765.26	1260.20	34665,74	1333.30	36144.61	•	28T
28T	•			12611 20	34332.40	1320.48	35144.61	1390.18	37833.62	•	29T
29T	••	•	•	1320 48	35797.08	1376.81	37833.62	1455,14	39311.26	•	30T
301	33083.37	7 1272.44	2455240	1278.85	37469.84	1441.15	39311.26	1511.97	41210.37	_	अन
317	••	-							42239.22		अन
31T									43272.53		317
31T			•	1455 14	39311.26	1511.97	41210.37	1585.01	43006.61		32T
32T	••		•	1511 97	41210.37	1585.01	43006.61	1654.10	45011.05		331
क्ष	••		•	4284 Of	43006.61	1654.10	45011,05	1731.19	46805.43		347
341			•	1854 10	45011.05	1731.19	46805.43	1800.21	49233.26		357
351	41210.37	10.0361 73	45000001	4724 10	46805.43	1800.21	49233.26	1893.59	51344,33		36T
36T	•			285.5	49233.26	1893.59	51344.33	1974.78	53666.15		377
377	•			1890 36	51698.90	1988.42	53931.64	2074.29	56375.32		377
377				2803 50	51344.33	1974.78	53666.15	2064.08	55775.96		387
38T									57449.16		38T
387					•				58565.12		38T
38T				1974.78	53666.15	2064.08	55775.96	2145.23	58734.41		39T
39T			•	2044.62	55250.42	2125.02	58179.82	2237.69	60687.11		40 4
40 1	50859.79	C1.0C61 6/	55750.47	2125.02	58179.82	2237.69	60687.11	2334.12	63406.44		· 41T
417				2237.69	60687.11	2334.12	63406,44	2438.71	65916.24		421
42T				2334 12	63406.44	2438.71	65916.24	2535.24	68529.56		43T
431											43T
434				2438 74	65916.24	2535.24	68529.56	•			4
44T				2635	68529.56	2635.75	71248.87	.,			<u>4</u> 5ੀ
451				2695	749.48.87	774034	74071.05				46T
45			•	70007	74074 00	20,000	75000 4				47
47				40404/2	2000 1000	2051 54	70000				48T
481				204070	00 03000	2400 72	86083.80				FOT
501	76999.15	.15 2961.51	79929.83	30/4/22	8024100	3435.04	92730.73	3566.57	96212.17	3700,47	527
527			•	76-0100	2011	-					

ExastiProvidence City THE PRUST Rais Year July 1, 2012 directly 100e x0, 2013 ... Benefit Alternative Exhibit

Providence and the second seco	- the life of the same of the Mary St. and the same of
Group Number/Name	All Groups ⁽²⁾ - East Providence City
Benefit Component	Standalone Benefit Option #2
, Office Visits	•
PCP	\$20
Spec	\$90
. Allergy/Derm	\$90
Vision	\$30
Chiro	\$30
. Urgi	\$50
In Network Colnsurance	100%/0%
In Network Deductible ⁽¹⁾	\$500/\$1,000
In Network OOP Max	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$
. ER Copay	\$150
Rx-Pharmacy	20%/25%/30%
Rx-Mail Order	20%/25%/30%
MHCD copays	\$30 Ind/\$30 Group .
Out of Network Colnsurance	80%/20%
Out of Network Deductible	
Out of Network OOP Max	
Good Health Denefit	Yes
Vision Eyewear Program	N/A
individual Rate	\$482.05
Family Rate *	\$1,182.40

Reflects a Hybrid Deductible - applies to inpatient and outpatient medical/surgical care, high end redicing services, major diagnostics, and nuclear medicine (MRI/CAT/PET), durable medical equipment, physical/occupational/speech therapy. Preventive and diagnostic lab, x-rays, and imaging are not subject to the deductible.

(a) Raies assume that all current enrollees convert to the proposed standalone option, except for the current enrollees in HSA plans (BH5578 & BH5694), which would remain in their current HSA product.

EXHIBIT 1

Social Security

The Official Website of the U.S. Bocial Security Administration

Cost-Of-Living Adjustments

Automatic Determinations

COLA determination

Since 1975, Social Security general benefit increases have been cost-of-living adjustments or COLAs. The 1975-82 COLAs were effective with Social Security benefits payable for June In each of those years; thereafter COLAs have been effective with benefits payable for December.

COLA

SSI payment rates increase with Prior to 1975, Social Security benefit increases were set by legislation.

Social Security Cost-Of-Living Adjustments

***				7.000 Sec	HAT SUCKE & BUS PERSON		?41 to 20 \$44 follow 114 1 Per	
	Year	. COLA	•	Year	COLA	Year	COLA	
	1975	8.0	•	1990	5.4	2005	4.1	
	1976	6,4	.:	1991	3.7	2006	3.3	
	1977	5. 9	:	1992	3.0	2007	2,3	
	1978	6:5	:	1993	2.6	2008	5.8	
•	1979	9,9		1994	2,8	2009	0,0	
;	1980	14.3	٠	1995	2.6	2010	0.0	
	1981	11.2	ŧ	1996	2.9	2011	3.6	
:	1982	7.4		1997	2.1	2012	1.7	;
:	1983	3,5	:	1998	1,3			
:	1984	3,5	;	1999	2.5			
	1985	3,1	:	2000	3,5			,
	1986	1.3	į	2001	2.6			
-	1987	4,2	:	2002	1.4			;
:	1988	4.0	:	2003	2.1			:
:	1989	4.7		2004	2.7			:
FERRNA	-elikatin a velampi tani -el	w, 4, 2, 1, 14 at 12, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11, 11,	*****	w/-4:121.4+1.A-1.4-111.		る なかいときたいかぶん~くずさがた。	ーメイイセチィジ トッッ・リットンナー・	¥7,

^{*} The COLA for December 1999 was originally determined as 2.4 percent based on CPIs published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Pursuant to Public Law 106.554, however, this COLA is effectively now 2.5

The first COLA, for June 1975, was based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) from the second quarter of 1974 to the first quarter of 1975. The 1976-83 COLAs were based on Increases in the CPI-W from the first quarter of the prior year to the corresponding quarter of the current year in which the COLA became effective. After 1983, COLAs have been based on increases in the CPI-W from the third quarter of the prior year to the corresponding quarter of the current year in which the COLA became effective.

SSI GOLAs

COLAs for the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) program are generally the same as those for the Social Security program. However, COLAs for SSI have generally been effective for the month following the effective month of Social Security benefit increases, See SSI historical payment standards for more detail.

Last reviewed or modified 10/18/2012